Smythes Creek State School No.1504 (former)



Former Smythes Creek State School No 1504



Former Smythes Creek State School No 1504



Former Smythes Creek State School No 1504



Smythes Creek School - well.jpg



Smythes Creek School Pine trees.jpg

Location

606 GLENELG HIGHWAY, SMYTHES CREEK - PROPERTY NUMBER 2012281, BALLARAT CITY

Municipality

BALLARAT CITY

Level of significance

Included in Heritage Overlay

Heritage Overlay Numbers

HO213

Heritage Listing

Ballarat City

Statement of Significance

Last updated on - February 28, 2024

What is significant?

The former Smythes Creek State School No. 1504 at 606 Glenelg Highway to the extent of the c1874 fabric and early additions, including a kitchen skillion to the residence section. The building comprises a brick schoolroom with front entrance porch and attached living quarters. The schoolroom has a gabled facade and a gabled porch on the left-hand side of the facade. The door is four-panelled with shallow mouldings. The windows are all six-over-six double-hung sashes, with flat-arched lintels and basalt sills.

Trees which provide an important setting include *Pinus radiata* (Monterey Pine), *Salix caprea* (Pussy Willow), *Salix matsudana* (Tortured Willow) a hedge of *Cupressocyparis* x *Ieylandii* (Leyland Cypress). Also of significance is the domed brick well at the rear of the school house, and remains of an early post and rail fence.

The c1930s fibro-cement extension to the north elevation is not of significance, nor is the large modern brick residence or outbuildings located to the rear of the school.

How is it significant?

The former Smythes Creek State School No. 1504 is of local historic and architectural significance.

Why is it significant?

The former Smythes Creek State School is of historical significance as a small rural school established to educate the children of the small Smythes Creek settlement, based on mining and then agricultural pursuits. It is one of the few tangible reminders of the former mining settlement of Smythes Creek. (Criteron A)

The former Smythes Creek State School is of architectural significance as a representative example of a small rural school house with attached living quarters, constructed in 1874 to a Department of Education standard design by builders Lewis and Roberts. (Criterion D)

Theme

8. Building community life

Heritage Study/Consultant Ballarat - Sebastopol Heritage Study (Stage 2), Context Pty Ltd, 2015;

Construction dates 1874,

Architect/Designer Education Department,

Hermes Number 183811

Property Number

Physical Description 1

The former Smythes Creek State School No 1504 is a small brick building, containing both the schoolroom and teacher's residence. The schoolroom has triple brick walls and the residence double brick walls resting on basalt foundations, neither with a cavity. The walls have been painted many times, the earliest layers showing an oxide red limewash, suggesting that damp penetration through the brick was an early problem.

The schoolroom has a gabled facade with a timber finial and a gabled porch on the left-hand side of the facade. The doorway has a flat-arched lintel and bluestone sill (cracked) and step. The door is four-panelled with shallow mouldings. The windows are all six-over-six double-hung sashes, with flat-arched lintels and basalt sills. The one

on the facade and three on the east elevation are all at a normal height, while the one on the north end is high set to allow for a chalkboard below. There is a rectangular, louvered vent with basalt sill in the apex of each gable.

A doorway was added to the north end of the schoolroom, probably when it was converted to a house, as was an internal door linking it to the residence. The external door is ledged and framed.

The teacher's residence comprises a narrow gable perpendicular to and flush with the school room facade, with a skillion behind it. There is a joint in the bricks and the foundations where the kitchen section of the skillion was constructed as an early addition. There is an external brick kitchen chimney, to the west wall of the skillion, with a band of corbelling. This chimney is identical to the chimney near the ridgeline of this wing. The residence has the same type of windows as the school room (with modern shutters added).

The gable end of the residence has an identical bargeboard, finial and louvered vent as the schoolroom. The four-panelled door is also the same as the one to the school porch.

A fibro-walled bathroom and laundry extension was made to the north side of the residence, most likely when the entire building was converted to residential use in 1930. This has been partially demolished by the present owners to make way for a link with a new house set behind the school. Care has been taken for this link to be reversible. The new house is about twice the size as the school, but has been designed to echo it in form (gabled roofs) and materials (red brick).

Behind the schoolroom is a dome brick well (with a new pump installed on it). There are also two rough fence posts at the west side of the site, near the front boundary, which indicate the original diagonal rear boundary to the school site, which date post c1874.

The school building is surrounded by mature trees, including Pussy willow (Salix cinera), Tortured Willow (Salix matsudana). A traditional perimeter planting ofMonterey Pine (Pinus radiata) survive, as does a Cypress hedge. The garden and trees provide an attractive setting and context for the former School, and have some interest as they are likely to have an association with the children of the school.

This place/object may be included in the Victorian Heritage Register pursuant to the Heritage Act 2017. Check the Victorian Heritage Database, selecting 'Heritage Victoria' as the place source.

For further details about Heritage Overlay places, contact the relevant local council or go to Planning Schemes Online http://planningschemes.dpcd.vic.gov.au/